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Report on Limited Review of Inferim Financial Statements

To: TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL BANK OF KUWAIT - EGYPT (5.A.E)

Introduction

We have performed a limited review for the accompanying interim financial statements of
NATIONAL BANK OF KUWAIT — EGYPT (S.A.E) as of JUNE 30, 2016 which comprise of
statement of financial position as of JUNE 30, 2016 and the related statements of income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the Six-months period then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is responsible for
the preparation and fair preseniation of these intérim financial statements and basis of
recognition and measurement in accordance with the Central Bank of Egypt’s rules issued on
December 16, 2008, its explanatory instructions and the prevailing Egyptian laws. Our
responsibility is to express a conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our

limited review.
Scope of Lintited Review

We conducted our limited review in accordance with the Egyptian Standard on Review
Engagements 2410, “Limited Review of Interim Financial Statements Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity". A limited review of interim financial statements consists
of making inquiries, primarity of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters in
the Bank, and applying analytical and other limited review procedures, A limited review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Egyptian Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
awarc of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not

express an audit opinion on these interim financial statements.

Conclusion

Based on our limited review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the accompanying separate interim financial statements do not present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Bank as of JUNE 30, 2016, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the Six-months period then ended, in accordance with the
basis of recognition and measurement issued by the Central Bank of Egypt’s rules issued on

December 16, 2008, its subsequent explanatory instructions and the prevailing Egyptian laws.

Cairo, August 9,2016 .
/‘ﬁ«,’f K; Auditors e SheXife 2 L%LQ&\\(B

Mohamed Ahmdd Muhmowd-Abw Elkassim Dr. Sherif Elsoka
T RAATESS o RAA 10425
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National Bank of Kawait - Egypt (5.A.L%)
BALANCE SHEET
As of 30 UNE 2016

Note JOJUNE 2016 31 December 2015
No,
L.k (000 L.E (000)
Assets
Cash and Due from Central Bank (14) 2,487,454 2,974,811
Due from banks (15) 3,467,401 6,593,810
Treasury biils {16} 10,480,652 6,612,335
Loans and Facilities to cuslomers (an 16,240,821 13,819,048
Available for sale investinents (19) 6,711,697 6,598,364
Held to maturity investments (19) 21,750 21,780
Investinents in associates {20) 36,710 34,785
Other assets (21) 719,877 626,321
Fixed assets (22) - 293,612 ~ 296,356
Total assets 40,459,974 37,578,680
Liabilitics and Equity
Liabilitics
Due (o banks (23) 3,890,814 3,592,789
Customers' deposits (24) 31,788,096 30,394,209
Financial Derivatives {18} 3,624 1,059
Other loans (25) 1,448,700 618,408
Other liabilities (26) 382,745 295,283
Other provisions 27 144,526 151,621
Deferred Tax Liabilities (28) 4,180 4,094
Current Income Tax Liabilities 14,246 18,782
Tatal liahilitics 37,676,931 35,076,235
Equity
lssued and Paid-up capital (29/b) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Reserves {29/ ¢) 542,041 481,727
Retained Eamings (2% d} 1,241,002 1,020,718
Total Equify 2,783,043 2,502 445
Total Liablities and Equi e 40,459,974 37,578,680
e '
I’Ylana ing pirdetor Chairman
: 2&*}({ <
Dr. Yasser Ismail Hassan Isam J. Alsager

-The accompanying notes from (1) to (38) are integral part of these financial statements and to be

read there with,
-~The limited review report is attached.




Natienal Bank of Kuwait - Lgypt {S.AE)

Franslation of finanaiad vatements
Oinginally sssuad i Arabie

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Interest income from foans and
similar revenues

Cost of deposits and similar cosls
Net interest Income

Fees and commissions revenues
Fees and commissions expenses
Net income from fees and
commissions

Dividends

Net trading income

Gains from financial investments
Share of profit from associates
Impairment charges for credit
losses

General and administralive
cxpenses

Other operating income
{uxpenses)

Net profits for the period
before Fax

Current Income tax

Net profits for the period

Earnings per share

{“

I

Nofe
No.

{5)

(6)
(6)

(N
(8)
%
(10)

(7
(n
{12)

(13)

Six months

Six months

Three months

‘Three months

ended ended ended ehded
30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 20158 JOJUNE 2016 30 JUNE 215

L.E {000) L.E (000) L.E (060) L.E (000)
1,664,237 1,302,861 874,197 689,326
(932,553) (760,343) (473,995) (403,761)
731,684 542,518 400,202 286,565
174,081 165,628 89,225 86,582
(4,215) (2,189) (2,413) (1,260)
169,866 163,439 86,812 85,322
2,067 1,577 2,067 1,577
24,273 18,807 8,823 10,926
2,738 11,6567 57 806
2,421 1,432 2,700 1,349
(150,468) (109,785) (91,469} (54,279)
(231,316} (180,563) (121,482) (90,693)
17,095 (18,344) 19,447 {7.293)
568,269 430,738 307157 233,280
{160,923} {146,708) {86,333} (75,681)
407,436 284,029 220,824 157,699

4,07 2,84 2.20 1.568

i W
p . C .
Mantaging Director

Dr. Yasser Ismail Hassan

Chairman

Isam J. Alsager

- The accampanying notes from (1) (o (38) are integral part of these financial statements and to be

read there with.
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (5.A.E)

Tromslation of financial statements
Criginally issued in Arabic

STATEMENT OF CASIH FLOWS
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Net Profits before income tax

Adjustments fo reconcile net profif to net cash provided

from operating activities

Depreciation -

Impairment charges for eredit losses

Other provisions charges

Foreign currencies revaluation differcnces of other provisions
Foreign currencies revaluation differences of Investments available for sale
Share of profit from associates

Gains {losses) from sale of fixed assets

Gains (losses) from sale of investments available for sale

Used From other provisions

Amortized Cost

Dividends

Operating prefits before changes in assets and liabilities from
operating activities

Proceeds from operating activities

Net decrease (increase) in assets and liabilities

Due from central banks (within the mandatory reserve percentage)
Treasury bills with maturities of more than three months

Loans and facilities to customers and banks

Other assets

Due to banks

Customers' deposits

Financtal Derivatives

Other liabilitics

Income tax paid

Net cash flows (Used in) / provided from eperating activities (1)

Cash flows from Invesfing Activities

Payinents to acquire fixed assets and lixtures of branches
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments
Payments to purchase of available for sale investments
Proceeds from Dividends received

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (2)

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000}

568,359 430,738

17,874 19,417

150,468 109,785

- {3,975

§,134 206

(10,660) (3,960)

(2,421) (1,432)

(20,808) (390)

(2,391) (6,747}

{8,615) {4,759)

2,444 3,362

_ . (2,067) (1,577)

693,317 558,608

588,342 850,397

(3,805,673) (796,014}

(2,571,004) (1,873,326)

(98,060) (99,683)

298,025 (439,295)

1,393,797 6,196,910

2,565 245

87,462 71,578

__qesyhy (146557

(3,576,600) 4,322,863

(11,862) (15,828)

21,291 1,690

803,378 903,669

(973,931) (2,935,343)

o256y 2297




Translation of Gnancial stateinents
Originally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (§.ALE)
STATEMENT OF CASH TLOWS

For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Cash flows from Financing Activities

Increase / Decrease in tong term loans $30,292 21,450
Dividends paid {(58,011) (30,631)
Net cash flows provided from (used in) financing activities (3) 772,281 (15,181)
Net Cash and cash equivalents during the period (1+24+3) (2,962,880) 2,264,167
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 6,987,483 6,042,544
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 4,024,603 8,306,711
Cash and cash eguivalents ave yepresented in :

Cash and due from Central Bank 2,487,454 4,717,150
Due from banks 3,467,401 1,569,342
Treasury bills 10,480,652 7,916,554
Due from central banks (within the mandatory reserve percentage) (2,074,408)  (1,524,660)
Treasury bills with maturities of more than three months (10,336,496)  (4,371,675)
Cash and cash equivalents 4,024,603 8,306,711

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (38) are integral part of these financial stalements and to be

read there with.




Translalion of financial statements
Onginally issued in Arabic

Nationa! Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 30 June 2016

1.

Background

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E) was established by the name of (Alwatany Bank
of Egypt) as a commercial bank in Arab Republic of Egypt under the investment law No.
(43) For 1974 and its amendments.

The head office is located in First Sector, Part 155, City Center New Cairo, Egypt; the
Bank is listed in Cairo and Alexandria stock exchange.

On March 24, 2013 Extraordinary General Assembly decided to -amend the name of the
pank from Alwatany Bank of Egypt to become National Bank of Kuawait - Egypt, This
amendment has been approved and recorded it in the Commercial Register on Apri! 29,
2014,

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt provides corporate, retail and investment banking
services in Arab Republic of Egypt through 41 branches, and employs 1,173 stafl at the
date of the Balance sheet.

Significant Accounting Policies Applied

The following are the significant accounting policies which were adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements, these policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A - Basis of financial statements preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Egyptian Accounting
Standards issued in 2006 and its amendments and in accordance with Central Bank of
Egypt rules approved by its Board of Directors on 16 December 2008,and in
accordance with the relevant domestic laws and on the historical cost convention
basis, modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities classificd on
initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss and available for sale and all
derivative confracis.

B - Subsidiaries and Associates
B/ 1 Subsidiary
Subsidiaries are all companies (including special purpose entities / SPEs) over which
the Bank has owned directly or indirectly the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally the Bank own more than one half of the voling rights.
‘The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Bank has the ability to control
the entity.

B/2 Associates

. Associates are companies in which the Bank has, directly or indirectly, significant
influence, but it does not reach to the extent of control, and usually the Bank owns
from 20% to 50% of the voting rights
the bank applying equity method for accounting of the investments in associates, -
dividends were recognized on approval of the deduction from the fair value of
assels recognized since the investments in subsidiaries were either disposed or
liquidated. FFor the purpose of the application of the equity method, the bank had fo
compare the investments acquisition cost with the fair values of the net assets




Translation of financial starepents
Onginally issued in Aiabic
National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (5.A.E)

Notes to the Financial Statemenis
Tor the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

acquired, however since the fair value of the net assels acquived at date of
'!cqnisition is not determinable, it was considered that the fair value of the net assels
is equal to its book value.

The bank assessed whether there are indications of impairment in the investments in
associates and no indications for the impairment were identificd.

C- Segmenf reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products
or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is a segment by which, provide products

or setvices within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

D- Foreign currencies translation
D/1  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Egyptian pound, which is the Bank’s
functional and presentation currency.

D/2 Toreign currency transactions and balances

The Bank maintains its accounling records in Egyptian pound. Foreign
currency transactions are translated and recorded using the exchange . rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the end of each year at the exchange rates
then prevailing. Foreign currencies gains and losses resulting from settlement
of these transactions in addition to revaluation differences are recognized in the
income staiement in the following sections:

o Net trading income, if resulting from financial instruments designated as at
fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition, for financial
assets/liabilities held for frading or designated as at “fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition.

o Owner's equily if resulting from the financial derivatives used as cash flows
hedge or net investment hedge.

o Other operating income (expenses) for other items.

The changes in fair value arising from monetary financial instruments classified
as available for sale (Debt Instruments) should be analyzed into: differences
arising from changes in the instruments amortized cost which is recognized in
the income statement in “interest income on loans and similar income” and
differences arises from changes in foreign exchange rate which is recorded in
the income statement in “other operating revenues (expenses)” and differences
arises from change in fair value which is recognized in owners’ equity (fair
value reserve for available for sale investments)

Translation differences of non-monetary items {(equity securities) held at fair
value through profit or loss also mcludes its fair value revaluation difference.
Whereas for those classified as available-for-sale are recorded directly in equity
in fair value reserve for available for sale investments.

10




‘lranslation of financial statements
Crginally issued in Atabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.I)

Notes o the Financial Stalemenis
For the period ended 30 JUNL 2016

Ii- Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: [inancial assels at
fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments;
and available-for-sale financial assets. Management deterimines the classification of ils
investments at initial recognition.

E/1 financial assels at fair value through profit and loss:

This category includes financial assets held for trading and [inancial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling in the near ferm or if is parl financial
instruments portfolio that are managed together and there is evidence resulted
from recent actual transaction that profit can be recognized. Derivatives can be
classified as held for trading unless they are identified as hedging instruments.

- Financials assets designated at fair value through profit or loss ave
recogirized when:

» Doing so significantly reduces measurement inconstancies that would
arise if the related derivatives were treated as held for trading and the
underlying financial instruments were carried at amortized cost for toans
and facilities to customers or banks and issued debt securities.

o Equity investments that are managed-and evaluated at the fair value Dasis

in accordance with a risk management or investment strategy and
preparing reporls to top management on that basis are classified as fair
value through profit and loss.

o Tinancial instruments such as debt instrument which contain one or more
embedded derivatives which may significantly affect the cash flows are
classified at fair value through profit and foss.

- Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
managed in conjunction with designated financial assets or financial liabilities
are recorded in the "net income from financial instruments classifted at fair
value though profit and loss"

-1t is not permitted to reclassify any derivative out of the financial instrument
valued at fair value through profit or loss category during its holding period.
Also, it is not permitted to reclassify any financial instrument valued at fair
value through profit or loss category if it is designated at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition,

- Tn all cases the Bank should not reclassify any financial instrument into
financial instrument measured at fair value through profit and loss or to the
keld for trading financial assets.

E /2 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

- Those that the Bank intends to selt immediately or in the short term, which are
classified as held for trading, or those that the Bank upon initial recognition
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

11




Transtation of financial stalements
Criginatly issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Notes (o the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Those that the Bank upon initial recognition classified as available for sale.

- Those for which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment, other than because of credit deterioration.

I /3 Held to matority financial assets:

E/4

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative assets which carry fixed or

determinable payments and where the Bank has the intention and the ability to
hold to maturity. Any sale of a significant amount, not ¢lose fo the date of its
maturity, would result in the reclassification of all held to maturily assets as
available for sale except in cases of necessity.

Available for sale financial asscts:

Available-for-sale assets are non-derivative financial assets that the bank’s
management has intention to hold for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in inlerest rates, exchange rates
ot equity prices.

The following applies to financial assefs:

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held to maturity and available for sale are recognized on frade-date — the
date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial asscts

carried at fair value throngh profit and loss are initially recognized at fair value, -
and transaction cosls are expensed in the income statement in net income from

trading.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights {o reeeive cash
flows have expired or when the bank has transferred substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are disposed upon disposal or
cancelation or expiration of its contractual term, '

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit -

or loss are subsequently measured at fair value. Held-to-maturity assets and loans
and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of assets ‘at fair value
through profil or loss are recognized in the income statement in the period it
occurs. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognized directly in equity, until the financial asset is
derecognized or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity should be recognized in profit or loss.

Interest income is recognized based on the amortized cost method in the income
statement, the foreign cwrency revaluations differences related to monetary
available for sale assefs are recognized in the income statements, dividends from
available Tor sale equity instruments are recognized in the income statement
when the bank’s right to receive the payment is established

12




Transtation ol Gnancial statements
Originally issugd in Arabie

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)
Noles to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Fair valuc are obfained from quoted market price in active market (bid price),
where no active market exists, or quoled price are unobtainable, the fair value is
estimated using a variety of valuation technique — including discounted cash flow
, using recent sale prices, option pricing models or other valuation method used
by market participants. When the bank is unable to estimate the fair value ol
equity available for sale instrument it is measured at cost less any impairment
losses.

Debt instruments can be reclassified from the available-for-sale assets to held-to-
matwrity at fair value when the Bank has the intention and ability to hold the
financial assets to maturity. Any related profits or losses that were previously
recognized in equity are treated as follows:~

1. In case of financial assets with fixed and determinable payments and fixed
maturity, gains and losses are amortized over the remaining life of the
financial asset held to maturity using the effective interest method. The
difference between the amortized cost and the maturity value is amortized
over the remaining life of the financial assel, using the effective interest
method. Tn case of impairment the profits or losses that have been previously
recognized in equity are recognized immediately in the income statement.

2. Tn case of financial assets without fixed or determinable maturity, gains and
losses are held in equity untif the asset is sold, then removed from equity and
recognized in the income statement. In case of impairment the profits or
losses that have been previously recognized in equity are recognized
immediately in the income statement.

If the Bank changes its estimates regarding payments or proceeds, the
book vatue of a financial asset (or group of financial assets) has to be
adjusted to reflect the actual cash inflows and the change in this estimate
through calculating the present value of estimated future cash flows using
the effective interest rate for the financial instrument. This adjustment is
recognized as either income or expense in the income statement.

In all cases, if the Bank reclassified financial asset in accordance with
what is referred to above and the Bank subsequently increase its future
cash proceeds estimates resulted from an increase in the recoverable
amount from its cash receipts, this increase is recognized as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate not as an adjustment in the book value of the
asset al the date of change in estimale.

1

F- Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitics can be offset when, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to set-ofT the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the assef and settle the liability simultaneously '

Treasury bills, repos and reverse repos agreements are netted, and presented on the
balance sheet in freasury bills and other governmental securities.

13




National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (5.A.E)

Translaiion of financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

G-

H-

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense related to financial instruments excepl for held for trading
assets or designated at fair vatue through profit and loss at initial recognition under
"nterest revenue and similar income" or Interest expense and similar charges.

The effective interest method is a method of calculaiing the amortized cost of a
financial asset or liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the expected life of the related instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or, a shorler period when appropriate fo reach the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or Hability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash tlows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, early payment options}
but does not consider future credit losses.

The calcutation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties of the
contract which is considered part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs include
all other premiums or discounts.

When loans or debts are classified as non-performing or impaired, related interest
income are not recognized but rather, are carried off balance sheet in statistical yecords
and are recognized as revenues according to cash basis as per the following:

- When collected and after recovery of all arrears for retail loans, personal loans,
small and medium business loans., mortgage loans for personal housing and small
loans for businesses,

- TFor loaus granted to corporate, interest income is recognized on cash basis after the
Bank collects 25 % of the scheduling installments and after the installments
continued to be regular for at least one year. Interest income will not be
recognized as revenue until full payment of the loan balance before the
rescheduling and client is considered to be performing.

Tees and commission income

Fees and commissions related to loan and facilities are recognized as income when the
service is rendered. Fees and commission income related to non-performing or
impaired loans or debts are suspended and are carried off balance sheet and are
recognized wunder income according to the cash basis, when interest income is
recognized in accordance with note (G) above, fees and commissions which represent
part of the financial asset effective rate is recognized as adjustment to the effective
interest rate.

Commitment fees recognized as revenue when there is probability that this loan will be
used by the customer, as commiiment fees represent compensation for the continuing
interfere to own the financial asset. Subsequently its recognized as adjustments to the
effective interest rate of the loan. If the commitment year passed without issuing the
loan, commitment fees is recognized as income at the end of the commitment year,
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Fees and commission related to equity debts measured by fair value is recognized as
income at inilial recognition. Fees and commission related to marketing of syndicated
Joan is recognized as income when the marketing is completed and the loan is fully used
or the Bank kept its share of the syndicated loan using the cffective interest rate as used
by the other participants.

Commission and fees arising [rom negotiation, or participating in a negotiation fo the
favor of a third party as in share acquisition arrangements or purchase of securities or
purchase or sale of businesses are recognized as income when the transaction is
completed, commission and fees related to management advisory and other service are
recognized as income based on the contract terms, usually on a time-appropriation basis.
Asset management fees are recognized over the year in which the service is provided.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognized in the income statement when the bank’s right to receive
those dividends is established.

Impairment of financial assels
J/1 financial asset carried at amortized cost:

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or portfolio of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a portfolio of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) had an impact on the estimated future cash [lows
of the financial asset or the portfolio that can be reliably estimated.

The indicators used by the bank fo determine whether there is objective evidence
that a financial assets or portfolio is impaired include the following:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor.

- Breach of the loan agreement, e.g. default

- It became probable the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganization.

- Deterioration of competitive position of borrower.

- Granting privileges or assignments by the Bank to the borrower, due to
economic or legal reasons, which are not granted by the Bank in the normal
course of business.

- Impairment of guaraniee.

- Deterioration of creditworthiness.

An objective evidence for impairment loss of the financial assets is the existence
of clear information indicating a measurable decline in the expected future cash
flows of such category since initial recognition though such decline is not
identifiable for each individual asset.

The Bank estimates the period between identifying the loss event and its
occurrence and it ranges from three to twelve months.
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The Bank first assesses whether objective - evidence of impairment cxisis
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant taking into
consideration the following:
In case there is no objective evidencc that an impairment loss has been
incurred on a financial instrument considered individually, being individually
significant or not, the Bank includes that financial asset in a group of financial
assets having similar characteristics in terms of credit risk and tests the whole
group for impairment.

An individually impairment test is made for a financial asset if there is
objective evidence that this asset is impaired. If the impairment ocewred then
this asset will be excluded from group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment.

- If the result of the previously test did not recognized impairment loss, then
this asset will be added to the group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment. Impairment loss is calculated by the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
recoverable cash flows, excluding future expected credit loss not charged yet,
discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate. This
impairment is booked in the income statement as "impairment loss" and the
book value of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment amount using -
"impairment loss provision". - ' ' '

If there is evidence that loan or other receivables, or {inancial assets classified as
held to maturity carry variable rate, the discount rate will be the contract effective
interest rate when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, For practical purposes, the Bank may measure the impairment loss
using the fair value of the instrument through its market rate.

For guaranteed financial assets present value for expected futures cash flow has -
to be considered in addition to the proceeds from sale of guarantee after
deducting selling cost.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are
grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics according to the Bank
classification taking into consideration type ol asset, indusiry, peographical
location, collateral, past-dues and other relevant factors. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for that group of assets as they are
indicators of the debtors” ability to pay all amounts due according to its contract
terms for assets under study.

If historical impairment losses rates method is used for a group of financial assets
that are collectively evaluaied for impairment, future contractual cash flow will
be used by the Bank in future and the historical loss for a group of assets with
similar credit risk characteristics are considered, Historical impairment loss rates
are adjusted to reflect the cffecis of current circumstances that did not affect the
year on which the historical impairment loss rates is based and to remove the
effects of circumstances ih the historical year that are not currently exist,
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The Bank has to ensure that the estimates of changes in future cash flows for
proups of asscts are in consistence with changes in relative data from year to
year, such as , changes in unemployment rates, real eslate prices, setilement
status, ot other factors that may affect the probabilily and magnitude of losses.
The Bank reviews the basis and methods of estimation regularly.

J /2 Available for sale asscts

At each balance sheet date, the Bank estimates if there is objective cvidence that
impairment loss for an asset or a group of assets classified as available-for-sale
or held to maturity is occurred. For listed equity instruments classified as
available for sale investments, impairment is recognized if as it's significant and
a prolonged decline it's price below it's acquisition cost is observed.

The decline in value is considered significant for the equity instruments if it
reaches 10% of the financial instrument’s cost, and it is considered prolonged if
it extends for a year of more than 9 months,

When a decline in the fair value of an available for sale financial asset has been
recognized directly in cquity under fair value reserve and subsequent objective
evidence of impairment emerges, the Bank recognizes the tolal accumulated loss
previously recognized equity will be recognized in profit and loss. Impairment
losses recognized on equity instruments on profit or loss are not subsequently
reversed, Impairment losses recognized through profit or loss on debt
instruments classified as available for sale are reversed through profit and loss if
the price subsequently increased and this increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of impairment loss in profit or loss.

Fixed assets

They represent land and buildings related to head office, branches and offices. All fixed
assets are reported at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses. The
historical cost includes all costs directly related to the acquisition of fixed assets items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as an
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow lo the Bank and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. -
Maintenance and repair expenses are charged fo other operating expenses during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to until it reaches the residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 50 years
— Furniture and safes ‘ from 10 years to 40 years
— Typewriters calculators and air conditions 8 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Computers and core systems S years
— Fixtures and fiflings 5 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whencver events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s camying amount is wiritten down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount is the hipher of the assel’s fair value less costs (o sell or value
in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined. by comparing proceeds with asset
carrying amount. These gain and (losses) are included in other operating income
(expenses) in the income statement.

Leases

The accounting treatment for the finance lease is in accordance with law 95 of year
1995, if the contract entitles the lessee to purchase the asset at a specified daic and
amount, and the contract term is more than 75% of the asset expected usetul life, or the
present value of the total lcase payments represents at least 90% of the value of the
asset then this lease is considered finance lease. Other leases are considered operating
lease.

L/1 leasing (lessee)

For finance lease contracts rent expense including maintenance cost related to
the leased assets is recognized in the income statement in the period in which it
occuired.

If the bank decides to exercise the rights to purchase the leased assets, the cost
of this right will be capitalized as fixed asset and depreciated over the assets'
expected remaining useful life using the same method used for similar assets.

Operating lease payments less any discounts granted to lessee is recognized as
expenses in the income statement using the straight line method over the
contract term.

L/2 leasing (lessor)
Assets leased as finance lease are recorded in the fixed assels caption in the
balance sheet and depreciated over the asset expected useful life using the same
method applicable to similar asseis. The rent income is recognized based on the
rate of return on the lease plus an amount equal to the cost of depreciation for
the period, and the difference between the rental income will be recognized in
the income statement using the straight line method over the contract term and
the total customer accounts and leasing it until the end of the lease wherc it is
used to offset with a net book value of the leased asset. The maintenance
expenses and insurance will be charged on the income statement when incurred
to the extent they are not charged to the tenant.

And when there is objective evidence that the Bank will not be able to collect
all bakances of debiors a financial lease, be reduced to its recoverable amount.
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Operating lease assels arc accounted for at the fixed assets caption in the
balance sheet and depreciated over the asset expected useful life using the same
method applicable to similar assels. The lease rent income less any discount
granted to the lessee will be recognized in the income statement using the
straight line method over the contract term.

M- Cash and cash equivalents

O,

For the purposes of the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents include
balances due within three months from date of acquisition, cash and batances due from
the Central Bank of Egypt other than the mandatory reserve, and current accounts with
banks and treasury bills and other governmental securitics.

Other provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal clais are recognized when the Bank has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than
1ot that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow is .

required (o seltle an obligation is determine taking into consideration the group of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recoguized even if the likelihood of an ontflow
with respect to any obligation in the group is minimal.

Provisions no longer required totally or partially are reversed in other operating income
(expense). Provisions are measured at the present value of the expected required
expenditures to settle obligations after one year from {inancial statement date using the
appropriate rate in accordance with the terms of setilement ignoring the tax effect
which reflects the time value of money. If the seftlement term is less than one year the
provision is booked using the present value unless {ime consideration has a significant
effect.

Fmployees benefits
Social Insurance

The bank commilted to pay the subscriptions to the general social inswrance
Authority and there are no additional liabilities on the bank when paying such
subscription which will be charged to the income statement for the appropriate
period, and to be included in employees benefits.

Employees Profit share
The bauk pays a percentage of the cash dividends declared as profit sharing to
employees. The employees’ share is recognized as a dividend distribution through
equity and as a liability when approved by the Bank’s shareholders generally
assembly meeting. No liability is recognized for profit sharing relating to
undistributed profit.
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Collective employee insurance policy

The Bank and employees pays contribution to the collective insurance policy as a
percentage of the employees' wages on a monthly basis. Once the contributions have
been paid, the bank has no further payment obligations. The regular contributions
constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due and as such are
included in staff costs, The contributions paid in advance are recognized within the
assets to the extent that it is reduce the future payments or cash refund.

Income fax

The income tax of the year on the profit or loss includes current tax and deferred tax
and is recognized in the income statement except for income tax relating to items of
owners’ equily which are recognized directly in equity.

The income taxes recognized on the basis of net taxable profit using the tax rates
enacted at the date of the Balance Sheet in addition to the fax adjustments related
fo previons years, and commilments in accordance with the principles of
accounting and its value according to the tax regulations, The value of defetred tax
is recognized based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
values of the asset values and liabilities, using tax rates enacted at the date of the
balance sheet.

The deferred tax assets of the Bank are recbgnized when that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized,
The value of deferred tax assefs is reduced by the portion that will result in .

expected tax benefit during the following years, however in the case of the increase
of expected tax benefit, the deferred tax assels will increase io the extent
previously reduced

Borrowing

Loans obtained by the Bank are initially recognized at fair value less the cost of

obtaining the loan, the loan is measured subscquently at antortized cost, and the

difference between net proceeds and the value that will be paid are charged in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Capital

R/1 Capital cost
Issnance cost directly related to issuing new shares or issuing shares refated to
acquisition or share options is charged to share holders’ equity of total proceeds net
of'tax.

R/2 Dividends
Dividends are recognized when declared by the General Assembly of shareholders.
Those dividends include employees’ share in the profits and the Board of Directors’
remuneration as prescribed by the articles of association and law.
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Bank's net profits are distributed annually after deducting all general expenses
and other costs as follows:

| - Deducting an amount equivalent to 5% of the profits to form the lepal
reserve and stop such deduction when the total reserve amount equivalent to
100% of paid-up capital, and when lack of reserves the deduction retorns,

7. And then deduct the amount needed for the disiribution of the first share of
the profits of 5% paid to shareholders for the value of their shares if that did
not allow the profit for one of the years, The distribution of this share is nof
permissible to claim the profits from the years following.

3 _ After that allocate 10% of the profits to staff and workers in the bank and
are distributed according to the rules proposed by the Board of Directors and
adopted by the General Assembly and no more than the sum of annual
wages for workers in the bank.

4 - After the above a rate not exceeding 10% of the rest is allocated to the
reward the Board of Directors. ‘

5. Distributing the rest of the profils to sharcholders after the additional share
in profits or go on a proposal to the Board of Directors next year.

§- Custodial activities

The bank performs custodial activities that results in custody or management of assets
on behalf of individuals, trusts, and retirement benefit plans. These assets and related
income are excluded from the bank’s financial statements, since these assets are not

owned by the bank,
T- Comparative figures

The comparative figures shall be re-classified, when necessary, o be in conformity
with the changes in the presentation used in the current year.

3. Financial Risk Management:
The bank, as a result of the aclivities it exercises, is exposed to various financial risks;
acceptance of risks is a basis in the financial activitics. Some risks or group of risks are
analyzed, evaluated and managed together. The bank objective is fo balance between the
visk and return and to reduce the possible negative effects on the bank’s financial

performance.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and other
operating risks. The market risk comprises foreign currency exchange rates, inferest rate
risk and other pricing risks.

The risk managementi policies have been set to determine and analyze the risks, set limits
to the risk and control them through reliable methods and updated information systems.

The bank regularly reviews the risk management policies and systems and amend them {o
they reflect the changes in market, products and services and the best updated
applications.

Those risks are managed by risk department in the light of policies approved by Board of
Directors. The risk department determines, evaluates and hedges the financial risks, in
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collaboration with the bank’s various operating units, and the Board of Dircctors provides
written policies for management of risks as a whole, in addition to written policies covering
specific risk areas, such as credit risk, foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and using
the financial derivative and non-derivative instruments. Moreover, the risk department is
independently responsible for annual review of risk management and control environment.

Credit risk

The bark is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk resulting from failure of onc parly to meet its
contractual obligations, Credit risk is considered the most significant risk for the bank therefore the
management is conservative in managing this risk. Credit risks results mainly from lending activities that
vesult in loans and facilities and from investment activities which resulis in obtaining debt instruments.
Credit risk is atso included in off balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments.
Managing and monitoring process of credit risk s represented in credit risk tcam management in risk
management department who prepare reports o the Board of Dircctors and Head of operating units on

regular basis,
A /1 Credit risk measurement
Loans and facilities to Banks and customers

To measure credit risk on the loans and facilities to banks and customers,
the Bank considers the following three components: :

* Probability of default by the client or third parties to fulfill its contractual
obligations.

* The current position and its future development from which the bank
conciude the balance exposed to risk. (Exposure at default)

The daily management of the bank's activities involves measures of ¢redit visk
based on the Expected Loss Model required by the Basel Commiitee on Banking
Supervision, Those operational measures could be inconsistent  with the
impairment loss according to TAS 26, which adopts the realized losses model and
not the expected losses (Note A/ 3).

The Bank evaluates the default risk for each customer using internal evatuation
methods to determine the rating for the different customers' categories. These
methods were improved taking into consideration statistical analysis and the
professional judgment of the credit officers to reach the appropriate rating. The
customers are classified into four ratings.

Rating scate (shown in the following table) reflects the possibility of defaulls for
cach rating category, in which the credit positions may transfer from onc rating to
olher depending on the change in the degree of possible risk. The customer’s
rating and the rating process are reviewed and improved when necessary. The
Bank periodically evaluates the performance of the credit rating methods and their
ability in expecling the customers' defaults.

Bank’s internal ratings scale

Rating description Rating
Performing loans 1
Regular watching 2
Waltch list 3
Non-performing loans 4
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The Position exposed to defaull depends on the outstanding balances expected at
the time when a default occurs, for example, for the loans , the position is the
book value, for commitments, the bank includes all actual withdrawals in addition
to any expected withdrawals till the date of the late payment if any.

The expecied losses or specific losses represent the Bank's expectation of loss as
of the date when the setflement is due, which is loan loss percentage that differ
according to the type of facility, the availability of guarantees and any other credit
cover.

Debt instriments and treasury bills and ofher bills

For debt instruments and bills, the Bank is using the external classifications such
as Standard & Poor's or equivalent to manage credit risk, in‘case such ratings are-
not available, methods similar to those applied to credit customers are used.

Investmenis in securities and treasury bills are regarded as a way to get better
credit quality at the same time provide a source available to meet funding

_ requiremens.

Limiting and avoiding risks policies

The Bank manages and controls credit concentrations at the borrower’s leved,
groups of borrowers’ level, industries Jevel and countries level.

The Bank manage the credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of
risk accepted in relation to single borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to the
geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a regular basis
and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary.
The top management reviews on quarterly basis the borrower, or groups ol
borrowers, geographical and industry segments and country credit concentration.

The lines of credit are divided, to any borrower including banks, into sub limits
include amounts inside and outside the balance sheet, the daily limit risk on
irading items such as forward foreign exchange contracts, the actual amounts are
compared with the limit every day.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the existing
and potential borrowers' ability to meet their obligations and through changing the
lending limits where appropriate.

The following are other controls used by the bank to limit the credit risk :
Collaterals

The bank use different methods to limit its credit visk. One of these methods is
accepting collaterals against loans and facilities granted by the bank. The bank
implements guidelines for collaterals to be accepted. The major types of
collateral against loans and facilities are:

= Real cstale mortgage
« Business assets morigage such as machines and goods.
« Financial instruments mortgage such as debt and equily instruments,
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The Bank keen (o oblain the appropriate guarantees against corporate entities of
tong term finance while individual credit facilities are generally unsecured.

In addition, to minimize the credit foss the bank will seek additional collatcrals
from all counterparties as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for a loan or
advance.

The Bank determine type of collaterals the Bank held by the bank as security for
financial assets other than loans and facilities according to the nature of the
instrument, generally, debt securities and freasury bills are unsecured, except for
asset-backed securities and similar instruments are secured by a financial
instrument poitfolio.

Derivatives

The bank maintains strict control limits over amounts and terms for the net value
of opened derivative positions i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts. Tn ali cases, the amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair
value of instruments in which the Bank could gain a benefit from it (i.c., assets
that have positive fair value), which represent small value of the contract, or the
notional value. The Bank manages this credit risk which is considered part of the
total customer limif with market changes risk all together. Generally no collateral
obtained for credit risk related fo these instruments, except for marginal deposits
required by the bank from other parties,

Setilement risk arises when cash, equity instruments or other financial securities is -
used in the settlement process, or if there is expectation to receive cash, equity
instruments or other financial securitics. Daily settlement limits are established for
each counterparty to cover the aggregate settlement risk arising from the daily
Bank transactions.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these commitments is to ensure that fimds are available to
customer when required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit are of the same
credit risks as loans.

Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are issued by the Bank on
behalf of customer by which authorizing a third parly to draw within a certain
limit in accordance to specific terms and conditions and guaranteed by the goods
under shipment are of lower risk than a direct loan, ‘

Credit related commitment represent the unused portion of credit limit of loans,
guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk related to credit related
commitments, the Bank is exposed to probable loss of amount equal o the total
unused limit. However, the probable amount of loss is less than the unused limit
coinmitments, as most commitments represent commiliments {o customers
maintaining certain credit standards. The Bank monitors the maturity term of the
credit commitments because long-term commitments are of high credit risk than
short-term commitments.
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A /3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating systems deseribed in Note (A/1) focus more on credit-quality
at the inception of lending and investment activitics, Otherwise, impairment
provisions recognized at the balance sheet date for financial reporting purposes
are losses that have been incurred and based on objective evidence of impairment
as will be mentioned below.

Due to the different imethodologies applied, the amounts of incurred credit losses
charged to the financial statements are usually lower than the expected amount
determined from the expecied loss models used.

The impairment provision appeared in the balance sheet at the end of the year is
derived from the four internal rating grades. However, the majority of the
impairment provision comes from the last two ratings, The table below shows the
percentage of in-balance sheet items relating to loans, facilities and the related
impairment for each rating Note that the debts which have been writien off
amounting 326,852 thousand Egyptian pounds during the period ended

30 June 2016

30 JUNKE 2016 31 Decemtber 2015
Banl’s rating

Loans & Impairment Loans & Impairment

facilities provision facilitics provision

% Yo % %
Performing loans %79.8 %13.1 % 729 % 16.9
Regular watching %93 Yod. 7 % 13.2 % 4.9
Watch list % 3.3 %37 % 3.5 % 2.2
Non-performing %7.6 %'78.5 % 10.4 % 76
loans

% 100 % 100 % 100 % 1060

The Bank’s internal rating assists management to determine whether objective
evidence of impairment exisis under EAS 26, based on the following criteria set
out by the Bank:

» Payment delinquency of principal or inferest.

« Breach of loan conditions

+ Expectation of bankruptey or entering a liquidation or finance restructure,

» Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position.

» For economical or legal reasons, the bank granted the borrower additional
benefits (hat will not be done in normal circumstances.

« Detertoration in the value of collateral.

« Deterioration of customer credit status.

The Bank policies require review of all financial assets (that exceed specific
materiality) at least once a year or more when required, the impairment loss is
determined on individual basis by determining case by case actual losses. These
policies applied on all accounts have specific materiality on individual basis,
Valuation usually includes the existing collateral; the related enforcements on
these collaterals and the expected cotlections from those accounis.

Impairment loss provision is formed based on group of similar assets using the
historical experience available, personal judgment and statistical methods.

25




‘Iranslation of financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (5.AE)

Notes to the Financial Slalements

For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

A /4 Baunking general risk measurement module

In addition to the four categorics of credit rating indicated in note (A/1) the
management makes more detailed groups iIn accordance with the CBE
requirements,

Assels exposed to credit risk in these categories are classified according fo

detailed conditions and terms depending on information related to the customer,
it's activities, financial position and payment schedules.

The Bank calculates the provisions required for impainment of assets exposed to
credit risk, including commitments relating to credit on the basis of rates

" determined by CBE. In case, the provision required for impairment losses as per

CBE regulations exceeds the provision required for financial statements
preparation purposes according to the Egyptian Accounting Standards, this
increase shall be debited from the retained earnings to and credifed to the "gencral
Banking risk reserve" under the equity caption, This reserve is regularly adjusted
wilh this increase and decrease, to equal the amount of increase and decrease i
the two provisions. This reserve is not distributable.

The following are the categories of credit ratings for the institutions in accordance
with the four internal rating grades compared to the bases of the Central Bank of
Egypt assessment and provisions percentage required for the impairment of assets
exposed to credit risk:

CBE Ratings Rating indications Provision Provision Infernal  Internal Ratings
percentage percentage Ratings Granting
required for required for
corporafe retail
1 Low risk Zero Zero 1 Performing loans
2 Moderate risk 1% 1% ! Performing loans
3 Satisfactory risk 1% 3% I Performing loans
4 Appropriate risk 2% 3% 1 Performing loans
5 Acceptable risk 2% 3% 1 Performing loans
6 Marginally Acceptable risk 3% 3% 2 Regular watching
7 Risks that need special care 5% 3% 3 Watch list
8 Below the level 20% 20% 4 Non-perforniing loans
9 Doubtful 0% 50 % 4 Non-performing loans
{ Bad debt 100 % 160 % 4 Non-performing loans
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A /5  Maximum [imifs for credit visk before coliaterats and after deducting the provision

30 JUNE 2016

31 December 2013

L..E (000} 1..E (000)

Balance sheet items exposed to credit risks
Treasury bills 10,480,652 6,612,335
Loans and facilities fo customers:
Retail loans:
Overdrafis 538,906 449 835
Credit cards 34,390 30,526
Personal loans ‘ 1,567,293 1,421,647
Mortgage loans 10,904 10,955
Corporate loans:
Overdrafts 932,394 531,800
Direct loans 12,613,121 10,584,356
Syndicated loans 543,753 789,929
Finaneial investments:
Debt instruments 6,666,624 6,549,001
Other assets 412,593 386,240
Total . 33,800,690 27,366,624
Off-balance sheet items exposed to credit risk
Acceptance docmnents 564,660 376,012
fetters of guarantee 2,423,420 2,249,487
Letters of credit Import/Export 801,013 616,889
Guarantees upon other banks request or by their warranty 1,380,424 1,039,573

5,169,517 4,281,961

A/ 6 Loans and facilities

Loans and facililies status based on credif rating are summarized as follows:

30 JUNE 2016 3§ December 2015
L.IL (000) L.E {000)

Loans and Tacilities fo  Loans and facilities

custoniers to customers
Neither past due noy impaired 15,788,861 13,075,688
Past due but not impaired 189,157 432,767
Intpaired 1,230,254 1,442,250
Total 17,208,272 14,950,705
Less:
TIimpairment loss provision (957,497) (1,121,152)
Interest in suspense (9,954} (10,505)
Net 16,240,821 13,819,048
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Past due Loans and facilities and not impaired
They are loans and facilities having past due up to 90 days and not considered timpaired, unless
there is information to the contrary. Loans and facilities having past due and not subject to
impairment and the fair value of guarantees refaled to it are as follows:

30 JUNE 2016

Past due wp to 30 days
Past due 30 - 60 days

Past due 60-90 days

Total

Past due up to 30 days
Past due 30 - 60 days
Pasl due 60-90 days

Total

Retail L.E (000}
Over-drafts Credit cards  Personal loans Mortgage Total
1,346 129,706 307 131,359
255 37,991 - 38,246
103 4,578 - 4,681
1,704 172,275 307 174,286
Corporate L.E (000)
Over-drafts Direct loans  Syndicated loans  Other loans Total
2,217 - - 2,217
12,654 - - 12,654
14,871 - - 14,871

At the initial recording of loans and facilities, the fair value of guarantees is assessed based on
valuation methods commonly used for similar assets. In subsequent periods, fair value is
updated according to the regulations of the Central Bank of Egypt.

31 December 2015

Past due
Past due
Past due

Total

Past due
Past due
Past due

Total

up to 30 days
30 - 60 days
60-90 days

up to 30 days

30 - 60 days
60-90 days

Fair value of collaterals

Retail L.E(000)
Over-drafis Credit cards Personal loans Mortgage Total
4,091 162,286 625 167,002
370 23,642 - 24,512
322 12,611 - 12,933
5,283 198,539 625 204,447
Corporate L.E(000)
Over-drafts Direct loans  Syndicated loans Other loans Total
228,320 - - 228,320
228,320 - - 228,320
313,619 - - 313,619
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Loans and facilities individually subject {o impairment

*Loans and facilities to customers
Loans and facilities individually subject to impairment before taking into consideration cash

flows from guarantecs amounted to L.E 1,230,254 thousand against L.E 1,442,250
thousand at the end of the comparative year according to the central bank regulations.

The breakdown of the total loans and facilities individually subject to impairment including
fair value of collateral obtained by the bank against those loans are as follows:

30 JUNE 2016

L.E (600) Retail Corporate
Valuation Over- Credit Persenal Mortgage  Over-  Direet Syndicated Ofther Total
drafts cards loans drafts loans loans loans
Individuat loans - 175 12,286 - 991,048 - 226,745 - 1,230,254
subject to impairment
Fair value of collaterals - - - - 126,536 - 34,575 - 161,111
31 December 2015
L.E (000} Retail Corporate
Valuation Over- Credit Persomal Morigage Over- Direct Syndicated Other Total
drafts  cards loans drafts loans loans loans
Individual loans - 57 9,0{8 300 1,233,260 - 199,655 - 1,442,250
subject to impairment
Fair value of collaterals - - - - 149,660 - 35,402 - 185,062

A /7 Debt instruments and treasury bills and other governmental securifics
The table below shows an analysis of debt instruments and treasury bills and other
governmental securities according (o the rating agencies at the end of the period |
according to the evaluation of (Standard and Poors) Agency at June 2016.
Treasury Investmenis Total
bills securities
L.E (000) L.E (000) 1..E (000)
B 10,480,652 1,498,256 11,978,908
B- - 5,136,325 5,136,328
Unrated - 32,043 32,043
Total 10,480,652 6,066,624 17,147,276
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B-

Market rvisk

The bank exposed to market risks which is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flow fluctuation resulted from changes in market prices. Market risks arise from
open market related fo interest rate, currency, and equity products of which each is
exposed to gencral and specific market movements and changes in sensitivity
levels of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rales and
equity instrument prices. The Bank divides its exposure to market risk into trading
and non-trading portfolios.

Bank treasury is responsible for managing the market risks arising from trading
and non-trading activities of which monitored by two teams. Regular reports of
market risk are submitted to The Audit Commiftee subset from the Board of
Directors and each business unit head periodically.

Trading portfolios include transactions where the Bank deals direct with clients or
with the market; Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from managing assets and
liabilities interest rate relating to retail transactions. Non-trading portfolios also
includes foreign exchange risk and equity instruments risks arising from the Bank’s
held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investments portfolios.

B /1 Market risk measurement techniques
As part of market risk management the Bank undertakes various hedging
strategics and enters into swaps to match the interest rate risk associated with
the fixed-rate long-term loans if the fair value option been applied. The major
measurement lechniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined
below:

Value at Risk .

The Bank applies a ‘value at risk’ methodology (VAR) for trading and non-
trading portfolios to estimate the market risk of positions held and the
maximum expected losses based on a number of assumptions for various
changes in market conditions. The Board sets limits for the value of risk that
may be accepted by the Bank for trading and non- trading poitfolios and
monitored by the Risk Management department in the bank.

VAR is a statistical estimation of the expected losses on the current portfolio
from adverse market movements in which it represents the ‘maximum’ amount
the Bank expect to lose using confidence level (98%). Therefore there is
statistical probability of (2%) that actual losses could be greater than the VAR
estimation. The VAR module assumes that the holding year is 10 days before
closing the opening position. It also assumes that market movements during the
holding year will be the same as 10-days before. The Bank’s assessment of past
movements is based on data for the past five years.

The Bank applies these historical changes in rates, prices and indicators directly
to its current positions this approach is called historical simulation. Actual
outcomes are monitored regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and
factors used in the VAR caleulation,

The use of this approach does not prevent losses from exceeding these limits if
there are significani market movements,

As VAR considered a primary part of the Bank’s market risk control technique
VAR limits are established by the Board annually for all trading and non-trading
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B2

transactions and allocated to business units. Actual values exposed to market
risk are compared to the limits established by the bank and reviewed daily by
the Risk Management department in the bank.

The quality of the VAR model is continuously monitored through examining the
VAR results for trading portfolio and results are reported to the top management
and Board of Directors.

Stress Testing

Stress festing provides an indicator of the expected losses that may arise fiom
sharp adverse circumstances Stress testing are designed to match business using
standard analysis for specific scenarios. The stress testing carried out by the
Bank treasury. Stress testing include: risk factor stiess testing where sharp
movements are applied to each risk category and test cmerging market stress, as
emerging market portfolios are subject to sharp movements; and subject to
special stress including possible stress events fo specific positions or regions -
for example the stress outcome to a region applying a free currency rate.

The results of the stress testing are reviewed by top management and Board of
directors and the summary of the risks committee meetings presents to the
Board of Directors.

Foreign exchange volatility risk

The Bank is exposed to foreign exchange rate volatility risk in terms of the .
financial position and cash flows. The Board of Directors set aggregate limits
for foreign exchange for each position at the end of the day, and during the day
which is controlled on timely basis. The following table summarizes the Bank
exposure to forcign exchange volatility risk at the end of the financial year. The
following table includes the carrying amounts of the financial instruments in
their currencies:
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Eequivalent in L.I% (000)

n JUNE 2016
Financial assels

Cash and balances with
Central banks

Due from banks
Treasury bills

Loans and facilities to
custoimers

Financial investments:

Available for sale
Held to maturity

Investinenis in subsidiaries
and associates
Other assets

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Due to banks
Customer deposits
Financial Derivatives
Other loans

Other Provisions

Other liabilities
Total finaneial liabilities

Nef linancial position as of
J0JUNE 2016
As of 31 December 2015

‘Total financial assets
Totat financial liabilities

Net financial position as of
31 December 2015

LE usn Eure GBT Other Taotal
1,661,870 767,881 40,087 11,119 6,497 2,487,454
2,597,131 692,883 57,460 40,082 79,845 3,467,401
7,519,638 2,961,014 - . - 10,480,652
9,527,895 6,292,995 419,903 22 6 16,240,321
6,622,721 88,788 188 . - 6,711,697

21,750 - - - 21,750

36,710 - - - - 36,710
981,742 31,434 309 1 3 1,013,489
28,069,457 10,834,995 517,947 51,224 86,351 40,459,974

2,524 3,774,036 114,254 . - 3,890,814
25,660,560 5,543,773 445513 50,266 87,984 31,788,006

3,624 - - - - 3,624

- 1,448,700 - - - 1,448,700

135,242 7,730 1,554 - - 44,526
3,144,234 38,387 1,509 41 43 3,184,214
28,946,184 10,812,626 562,830 50,307 88,027 40,459,974

23,273 22,369 {44,883) 917 (1,676) .
27,808,831 9,173,134 493420 36,910 66,385 37,578,680
27,806,486 9,186,331 481,352 36,341 68,170 37,578,680

2,345  (13,197) 12,088 569 (1,785) -

B /3 Interest rate risk
The Bank is exposed to the cffect of luctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on both ils fair value and cash flow risks. Interest
margins may increase as a result of such changes but may profit decrease in
the event that unexpected movements arise. The Alco commiitee sets limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate reprising that may be underlaken
which is monitored weekly by the bank’s Risk departiment.

The table below summarizes the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risks, It
includes the Bank’s financial instruments al carrying amounts categorized by
the earlier of re-pricing or maturity dates.
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30 JUNE 2016

Financial Assets

Cash and balances with
Central panks

Due from banks

Treasury bills

Leans and facilitics to
customers gross (before
deducling provisions)
Financial
investimenls:
Available for sale
1ield 1o maturity
Investments in
subsidiaries and
associates

Total financial assets
Financjal liahilities
Due to banks
Customer deposits
Tinancial Derivatives
Other Loans

Total financial
liabilities

Inlerest re-pricing
gap as of

30 JUNE 2016

31 December 2015
Total financial assels
Total financial
lisbilitics

Interest re-pricing
gap as of

31 December 2015

L. (00}

Up to I monih 1-3 Months 3-12 Months 1-5 years Over 5 years \::;2?::t Trdal
623,389 1,864,065 2,487,454
3,318,867 76,825 - 71,709 3,467,401
7,506 136,651 10,336,495 - - - 10,480,652
5,318,839 2,011,084 4,123,482 4,717,805 1,037,062 17,208,272
- 8,764 5,514,420 1,188,513 - 6,711,697
- - - 21,750 - 21,750
- . - - 36,710 . 36,710
8,645,212 2,847,849 14,468,741 10,‘232,225 2,284,035 1,935,774 40,413,936
1,969,579 796,611 1,124,624 - - - 3,890,814
13,987,623 6,867,619 3,254,566 6,985,487 397 692,404 31,788,096
3,624 - - - - - 3,624
- - - 965,800 482,900 - 1,448,700
15,960,826 7,664,230 4,379,190 7,951,287 483,297 692,404 37,131,234
{7,315,614) (4,816,281) 10,089,551 2,280,938 1,800,738 1,243,370 3,282,702
6,605,979 3,631,623 12,750,153 10,043,471 2,290,327 2,466,208 37,787 661
16,408,035 6,190,219 4,886,295 6,273,735 425,593 424,678 34,606,555
{9,800,056} {2,558,696) 7.863,858 3,769,736 1,864,734 2,041,530 3,181,106

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents difficulty encountering the Bank in meeting its
financial commitments when they fall due and replace funds when they are
withdrawn. This may results in failure of the settlement of the bank’s
obligations to repay to the depositors and fulfilling lending commitments.

Liguidity risk management process
The Bank’s liquidity management process carried out by the Bank liquidity
management depariment includes:

+ Daily funding managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that all
requirements can be met when due, this includes availability of liquidity as
they due or to be borrowed to custoniers. To ensure that the Bank reaches its
objective the Bank maintains an active presence in global money markets.

« The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assels {hat
assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen deteriorafion
of cash flow

»  Monitoring liguidity ratios in relation with internal requirements and central
bank of Egypt requirements.
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w

30 JUNE 2016

Financial linbitities
Due to banks

Customers’ deposits
Other loans

Total of financial tiabilitics

Total of financial assets

31 Pecember 2015

Financial liabikities
Due to banks

Customers’ deposils
Other loans
Totat of {inancial liabilities

‘Fotal of financial assets

Managing loans concentration and loans’ dues.

The main period for liquidity management is the next day, week and month.
The Bank caleulates the expected cash flow for those years for moniforing
and reporting purposes.

The starting point to calculate these expectations is analyzing the financial
liabilities dunes and expected financial assets collections.

Credit risk department monitor the mismatch between medium term assels,
the level and nature of unused loans limits, overdraft utilizations, and the
effect of contingent liabilities such as letters of guarantees and letters of
credit.

Funding appreach

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by a separate com mittee trampy
the bank treasury fo maintain a wide diversification of currency geography
resources products and lerms.

Cash flows derived

The following table presents cash flows paid by the bank in a financial
obligations underived distributed on the basis of the remaining conlractual
entitlements at the balance sheet date.

L. (00
Upto ! 2::1:t:1h:l)]31 fn)l‘oz:t:s]:i: :l} Over than 1 More than § Total
month : year to 5 years years
monihs year
2,146,450 1,233,564 510,800 - - 3,890,814
14,680,027 6,867,619 3,254,666 6,985,487 397 31,788,096
- - © . 4,448,700 . 1,448,700
16,826,477 8,101,183 3,765,366 8,434,187 387 37,127,610
11,210,823 5,010,370 13,432,715 9,619,434 1,140,595 40,413,937
L.E (000)
Over than 1 Over than 3 Over than 1 More than 5
Up to 1 month month to 3 months to 1 yearto 5 ) i Total
months year years yoars
2,467,185 762,617 362,087 - - 3,602,789
14,429,775 6,036,233 3,847,370 6,080,484 437 30,394,209
- - - 193,253 425,16b 618,408
16,896,860 6,798,850 4,210,357 6,273,737 425 592 34,605,406
10,887,006 3,904,794 13,767,855 8,206,602 1,021,404 37,787,661

Cash Flow Derivatives

Derivatives are settled in Gross amounts

Include the bank's derivatives which settled in gross amounts arc as the
following:

* Derivafives at the rate of return: return swaps and currencies together.
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The following table shows derivative financial obligations that will be settled
in gross, distributed on the basis of the remainder of the contractual
entitlements at the date of the balance sheet, the amounts listed in the table

represent the undiscounted cash tlows:

30 JUNE 2016 L.LE (000)
. L3 . 1enegr Over than 1 Over than 3 Over than | i
Financial liabilities Up l?ll month fo 3 months o { year ta 5 M;’m'c lI.mn Total
month months year years > years
IRS derivatives:
Outflows - - 87,800 - 87,800
Inflows - - - 87,800 - 87,800
Total outflows - - - 87,800 - 87,800
Total inflows - - - 87,800 - 87,800
31 December 2015 L.E (096}
: H fatnilies Over than | Over than 3 Over than 1
Financial liabilities Up t(:ll onth 103 o ontlss to [ jorrto s MO than 5 Total
month months year years years
IRS derivatives:
Ouiflows . - - 77,301 - 77,301
Inflows - - 77,301 - - 71,301
Total outflows - - - 77,301 - 77,301
Total inflows - - - 77,301 - 77,301
Off balance sheet items
According to the following table as referred to in note (32):
30 JUNE 2010 L.E {000)
Uptolyenr Overlyearand Morethan Total
less than 5 years 5 years
Financial guarantees, and acceptable bills and oy £
other financial facilities 5,169,517 " . 5,169,517
Operating lease comymitments 6,091 9,398 3,286 18,775
Capt!a'l _comnntmcnts arising from the 11,487 ) ) 11,487
acquisition of fixed assets
Total 5,187,095 9,398 3,286 5,199,779
31 December 2015 L.IE (000}
Upto | year Over | year andless  More than 5 Total
than 5 years years
Financial guarantees, and acceptable 4281 961 4981 961
bills arid other financial facilities e ) B =S
Operating lease commitments 5,498 5,687 - 11,186
Capital commitments arising from
the acquisition of fixed assefs 16,949 ) ) 16,949
Total 4,304,408 5,687 - 4,310,095
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D-  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

D/1 financial instroments measured at fair value using a valuation method.
The bank does not have financial instruments measured at estimated fair

value using a valuation method.

D/2 financial instruments not measured at fair value
The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values for those
financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Bank’s balance sheet at

their fair value.

Carrying value Fair value
L.E {000) L.E {000) L.E {(000) L.E (000)

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015 30 JUNE 2016 31 Pecember 2015

Financial assets

Due from banks 3,467,401 6,593,810 3,467,401 6,605,478
Loans and facililies to customers 17,208,272 14,950,705 17,057,493 14,920,092
Financial invesiments:

Equity instriuments available for 31.720 31937 31.720 31 937
sale unquoted ! ' P '
Debit instruments unguoted 21,750 21,750 31,224 31,228
Financial liabilities

Dwe to banks 3,890,814 3,692,789 3,888,849 3,682,314
Customers® deposits 31,788,096 30,394,299 32,333,483 30,758,747
Other loans 1,488,700 618,408 1,457,708 618,519

Due from banks

Fair value of placements and deposits bearing variable interest rate for one
day js its current value. The expected fair value for deposits bearing variable
interest is based on the discounted cash flow using rate of financial credit
markets of similar credit risk and due dates.

Loans and facilities fo customers _
Loans and facilities are net of provisions for impairment losses, Fair value
expected for foans and facilities represents the discounted value of future
cash flows expected to be collected and cash flows are discounted using the
current market interest rate to determine fair value.

Financial Investments

Financial investments shown in the above schedule includes only held to
maturity assets investiments; as available for sale investiments are measured at
fair value except for equity instruments that its market value can’t be reliably -
determined. Fair value of held-to-maturity investments is based on marke
prices or broker/ prices. Tair value is estimated using quoted market prices
for financial paper with similar credit maturity and yield characteristics
where information is not available.

Due to banks and customers
The estimated fair value of deposits of indefinite maturity which includes

interest-free deposits is the amount paid on call.
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The estimated fair value of fixed inferesi-bearing deposits and other loans not
traded in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using interest
rates for new debts of similar maturity dates.

Debt instruntents issued

The fair value is calculated based on market prices of current financial Markets.
For securities that do not have active markets, the cash flows discounted at the
current rate is used for the first time that is appropriate for the remaining period
untif the maturity date. '

-

Capital management

First: The Bank’s objectives behind managing capital include elements other
than equity shown in the balance sheet are represented in the following:

- Compliance with capital legal requirements in Egypt.

- Protecting the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and enabling
it to generate yicld for shareholders and other parties dealing with the
Bank.

- Maintaining a strong capital base to enhance growth.

Capital adequacy and uses are reviewed on a daily basis according to the
regulatory authority’s requitements (CBE) by the Bank’s management
throngh models based Basel committee for banking control  instructions,
these data are submitted to CBE on quarterly basis.

CBE requires the following from the Bank:

- Maintaining L.E 500 million as a minimum requirement for the issued
and paid up capital.

- Maintaining a ratio between capital elements and asset and contingent
liability elements weighted by risk weights at 10 % or more.

Second: According to the new standards issued on 18 December 2012
The numerator in capital adequacy comprises the following two tiers:

- Tier 1: It consists of two parts, the continuous capital and the basic
additional capital. is the basic capital comprising of paid up capital (after
deducting the carrying amount of the treasury stocks) relained earnings
and reserves resulting from profit appropriations except the general
reserve for banking risks less any goodwill previously recognized and
any carried forward losses.

Tier 2: It is the subordinated capital, and consists of the following: -
-45% of the value of the positive foreign currency translation differences
reserve.

- 45% of the value of the Special Reserve,

- 45% of the increase in the fair value over its carrying value of financial
investments (it positive).

- 45% of the value of balance of the fair value reserve of financial
investments available for sale.
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- 45% of the increase in the fair value of financial investments held to
maturity over it’s” book value.
- 45% of the increase in the fair value of financial investments in
subsidiaries and affiliates over it’s" book value.
- Hybrid Financial instruments,
- Loans (deposits) subordinated with the consumption of 20% of its value
each year of the last five years created.

- Provision for impairment of toans and advances and contingent habilities
(must not exceed 1.25% of the total credit risk of the assels and liabilities of
regular risk-weighted, also the impairment loss provision for loans and '
credit facilities and contingent liabilities should be enough to meet the
obligations provided for it.

Disposals of 50% of the first franche and 50% of the second tranche

- With respect to the value of assets reverted to the Bank for the settlement
of debts general banking risk reserve.

- When calculating the total numerator of the capital adequacy ratio, taking
in consideration not exceeding subordinated loans (deposits) for 50% of
the first tranche after exclusions.

- Assets and liabilities are weighted by credit risk, market risk, operational
risk.

The denominator of the capital adequacy ratio consists of the [ollowing:

- Credit risk

- Market Risk

- Operational risk. :

Assets are risk weighted ranging from zero o 100% classified according to
the nature of each asset of the debtor to reflect the credit risk associated
with it, and taking in consideration the cash collateral. .
And the same treatment is used for off-balance amounts afler adjustments
to reflect the contingent nature and the potential loss of (hose amounts.
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Translation of financial stalements
Onginatly issued in Arabje

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (8. A E)

Notes fo the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

The tables below summarizes the compositions of tier 1, tier 2 and the capital adequacy
ratio according to Basel 2 in (he end of the current period & prior year,

30 JUNE 2016 31 Decentber 2015
L.E (000) 1..E (000)

Capital
Tier 1 {basic capital)
Share capital 1,000,000 1,000,000
General reserve 356,773 256,773
Legal reserve 168,496 139,736
Capilal reserve 32,270 31,889
Retained eamings 833,566 445,133
Disposals (82,069) {22,186)
Tatal basic capital 2,309,036 1,851,345
Ticr 2 (subordinated capifal)
Equivalent to general risk provision 185,503 135,252
Loans/subordinated deposits 386,320 425,156
45% of the available for sale , held to maturity and 4,263 10,012
investments in associales and subsidiaries increase in
fair value '
45% of the special reserve ‘ 4,142 4,142
Disposals - -
Total suboerdinated capital 580,228 574,562
Total capital 2,889,264 2,425,907
Assets and contingent liabilities risl weighted
Total credil risk 15,498,979 11,464,552
Capital requirements for operational risk 1,767,292 1,767,292
Value of over limits determined for the largest 50 client ' 3,278,026 -
Total risk weighted asscts and contingent linhilifies 20,544,297 13,231,844
Capital adequacy ratio (%) % 14.06 % 18.33

Risk Management;
Ratio Components

A, Numerator components . : ‘
The numerator of the ratio consists of Tier | capital (after disposals) which is
used in the numerator of the capital adequacy ratio currently applied
according to the central bank of Egypt instructions.

B. Denominator components ;
The denominator of the ratio consists of all the assets of the bank in and off
balance sheet according to the financial statements which is mentioned
(bank exposures) which includes the following:
1- Exposure of items in the balance sheet after capital base disposals.
2~ Exposures from financing securities operations.
3- Exposure of off balance sheet ( weighted conversion factors )
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National Bank of Kuwail - Bgypt (S.A.E)

Transiation of financial statements

Orginally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

~The following table summarizes the financial leverage radio (as a guidance till 2017)

and as confrol ratio mandatory as of 2018

Tier 1 of Capital after disposals (1)

Cash and Due from Ceniral Bank

Due from banks

Treasury bills and other governmental sccurities

Available for sale investments

Held to maturily investments

Invesiments in associates and subsidiaries

Loans and facilities Lo customers

Fixed assets {after deducting impairment provisions and accumulated
depreciation)

Other assets

Deductible exposures (some of capital base Tier 1 deductions)
Total exposures of in-balance sheet items after Tier 1
deductions ;

Replacement cost

The future expected value

Total exposures resulted from derivatives contracts

Total exposures resulted from financing securities operations
Total exposures of in-balance sheet items, derivatives
contracts and financing securities operations.

Letters of credit — Importing

Letters of credit — Exporting

Letters of Guarantee

Letters of Guarantee upon other banks’ request or by their
warranties

Accepted Bills

Total contingent liabilifies

Capital Commiiments

Legal claims
Commitments for operating lease contracts

Commitments for loans, guarantecs and facilities (unused

limits)

irrevocable more than year

irrevocable one year or less

Unconditional revocable at any time by the bank and without
prior notice , or that include the texts of self- cancel because of
the deterioration of the creditworthiness of the borrower

Total commitments

Total Ofi-balance sheet exposures
Total in-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures  (2)
Financial leverage ratio (1/2)

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000}
2,309,036 1,851,345
4,807,454 8,681,764
1,147,401 386,957
10,480,652 6,612,335
6,711,697 6,599,364
21,750 21,750
36,710 34,785
16,412,402 13,993,025
203,612 296,356
719,877 626,321
(26,014) (22,186)
40,605,541 37,730,471
- 53
439 387
439 4472
16,493 33,063
40,622,473 37,763,976
160,203 119,423
- 3,954
1,211,710 1,124,744
690,212 519,787
564,660 376,012
2,626,785 2,143,920
11,487 16,949
15,315 15,284
18,775 11,185
19,255 53,349
25,045 -
457,683 655,133
547,560 751,900
3,174,345 2,895,820
43,796,818 40,659,796
%e5.27 %¢,55
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.AE)

Translation of financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

4, Significan{ accounting estimates and assumptions

‘The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based
on historical experience and other factors including the expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable.

Impairment losses for loans and facilities

The Bank reviews the portfolio of loans and facilities at least quarterly. The Bank
uses professional judgment in determining whether it is necessary to recoguize
impairment loss in the income statement, to identify if there is objective evidence
indicating a decline in the expected future cash flows from loan portfolio before
identifying any decline on individual basis. This evidence include data indicating
negative changes in borrowers’ portfolio ability to repay to the Bank, or local or
economic circumstances related to default. On rescheduling future cash flows the
management uses the past experience to determine the credit impairment loss for
assets when there is objective evidence of impairment similar to that of ihe
portfolio in question. '

The methods and assumptions used in estimating both the amount and timing of
the future cash flows are reviewed on a regular basis to minimize any discrepancy
between the estimated loss and actual loss based on experience.

Impairment of available for sale cquity investments

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This
determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Bank evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial situation of the investee or its operational or financing
cash flows, industry and sector performance or changes in technology.

Held-fo-maturity investnienis

The Bank classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Bank fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example,
selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required lo reclassily the
entire category as available for sale, The investments would therefore be measured -
at fair value not amortized cost.
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National Bank ol Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Translation of linancial slatements
Originally issued in Agabic

Notes to the Financial Stalements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
D - Tncome tax

The income tax of the year on the profit or loss includes current tax and deferred
tax and is recognized in the income statement except for income tax relating to
items of owners’ equity which are recognized directly in equity.

The income taxes recognized on the basis of net taxable profit using the tax rates
enacted at the date of the Balance Sheet in addition to the tax adjustments related
to previous years, and commitments in accordance with the principles of
accounting and its value according to the tax regulations, The value of deferred
tax is recognized based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
values of the asset values and liabilities, using tax rates enacted at the date of the
balance sheet.

The deferred tax assets of the Bank are recognized when that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized,
The value of deferred tax assets is reduced by the portion that will result in
expected tax benefit during the following years, however in the case of the
increase of expected tax benefit, the deferred tax assets will increase {o the extent
previously reduced.

5. Net interest income

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.F. (000) L.E (000)
Interest from loaus and similar revenues;
Loans and facilities :
Customers 676,510 447,974
Treasury bills - : 390,814 - 364,960
Deposits and current accounts 183,995 119,921
Investments in debt instraments held to maturity and
available for sale 412,918 370,006
Total : 1,664,237 1,302,861
Costs of Deposits and similar cosis;
Deposits and current accounts:
Banks ‘ 41,667 17,115
Customers 872,302 738,253
913,969 755,368
Other Loans 18,584 4,975
Total ‘ 932,553 760,343
731,684 542,518
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Tronslation of financiol statements
Qriginally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E}

Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
6. Nef fees and comntssion income

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)
Tees and commission income:
Fees and cominissions related to credit 151,085 144,699
Custody fees 1,309 1,815
Other fees 21,687 19,114
174,081 165,628
Fees and commnission expenses:
Other fees paid (4,215) (2,189)
Net 169,866 163,438
Dividends
30 JUNE 20106 30 JUNE 2015
1.E (000) L.E {000)
Securities available for sale 2,067 1,677
2,067 1,677
. Net trading income
30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)
Foreign exchange operations
Forex gains 26,838 19,052
Loss of revaluation interesl rate swap contract {2,5635) {245)
24,273 18,807
9. Gains from financial investments
30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.T (000) L.E {000)
Gains from sale of investments available for sate 2,392 6,747
Gains from sale of treasury bills 346 4,910
2,738 11,657
10, Share of profit from associates
30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.E (600) L.E (000)
International company for postal services 2,504 946
Al-Watany capital for assets management (83) 486
2,421 1,432
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.AE)

Transtation el fnancial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
11, Adminisfrative expenses

Staff costs

Wages and salaries

Social insurance

Pension and other benefits cost
Defined contribution plan

Other administrative expenses
Total

12. Other operating income (expenses)

Gains (losses) from revaluation of monetary asscts &
liabilities balances in foreign currencies other than

trading

Gains from Assets transferred to the bank
Reversal of provisions no longer required
Assets transferred to the bank expenses
Gains (losses) from sale of fixed assets
Operating and finance lease expenses
Other provisions

13, Income fax expenses

Current income Laxes
Deferred tax

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)

95,654 88,249

5,284 4,488

14,510 13,064

115,448 105,801

115,868 74,762

231,316 180,563

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)

2,585 (17)

5,781 5,785

(477) (233)

20,808 390

(11,602) (10,294)

- (13,975)

17,095 (18,344)

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015

L.E (000) 1..E (000)

160,836 146,557

87 162

160,923 146,709

(Note 28) shows additional information about deferred income tax. the taxes on bank profits

differ when current applicable tax rates used as follows:
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National Bank of Kwwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Translation of financial statements
Originally issued in Atabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Settlement to calculate the effective tax rate -

Accounting profit before tax

Income tax calculated on accounting profit
‘Total Income tax calculated on accounting profit

Add / (Deduect)

Nen-deductible expenses
Non-taxable revenues

Provisions and Inferest in suspense
Other deductions

Net tax pool

Income tax according to the tax return
Tax of Treasury Bills and Treasury bonds
Income tax

Effcetive fax rate

14, Cash and Due from Central Bank

Cash
Due from central bank (within the required
reserve percentage)

Non-interest bearing balances
Interest bearing balances

15, Due from banks
Current accounts
Deposits

Die from central bank (other than the required
reserve percentage )

Non-interest bearing balances
Tnterest bearing balances

Current balances

30 JUNE 2016 30 JUNE 2015
L.E (000) L. (000)
Tax pool Tax Tax pool Tax
568,358 430,738
127,881 129,172
127,881 19,172
242 833
(2,421) (1,432)
27,445 42,093
(416) 592
593,208 472,824
133,472 141,797
271,364 4,760
160,836 o 146,557
%28.3 ___%34.02
30 JUNE 20106 31 December 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)
413,046 312,080
2,074,408 2,662,751
2,487,454 2,074,811
1,864,065 2,428,533
623,389 546,278
2,487,454 2,974,811
30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) 1..E (000)
148,481 127,693
998,920 759,264
1,147,401 886,957
2,320,000 5,706,953
3,467,401 6,693,810
71,709 37,675
3,395,692 06,550,235
.. 3A67401 6,593,910
3,467,401 6,593,910
3,467,401 6,593,910
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (5.A.E)

Translation of financial slatements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financiat Stalements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
16. Treasury bills

Treasury bills
Treasury bills represent the following:

91 days maturily

182 days maturity
273 days maturity
364 days maturity

Unearned interest

Total

17. Loans and facilities to customers

L.oans to Customers
Murabhat
Total loans and facilities to customers

Less

Provision for impairment losses
Interest in suspense

Net

Retail:
Overdrafts
Credit eards
Personal loans
Mortgage loans
Total (1)
Corporate loans including small loans:
Overdrafis
Direct loans
Syndicated loans
Total (2)

Total loans and advances to customers (1+2)

Less

provision for impairment losses
Interest in suspense

Net

30 JUNE 20106

31 December 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)
10,480,652 6,612,335
147,475 82,100
461,675 458,000
4,443,584 1,235,500
5,922,400 5,109,056
10,975,134 6,885,656
(494,482) (273,321)
10,480,652 6,612,335

30 JUNE 2016

31 Pecember 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)
16,274,465 14,081,436
933,807 869,269
17,208,272 14,950,705
(957,497) (1,121,152)
(9,954) {10,5056)
16,240,821 13,819,048
30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000} L..E {000}
543,966 453,835
34,819 31,032
1,596,392 1,456,954
11,009 11,074
2,186,186 1,952,895
1,679,170 1,442,545
12,773,223 10,748,907
569,693 806,358
15,022,086 12,997,810
17,208,272 14,950,705
(957,497) (1,121,152)
(9,954) {10,505)
16,240,821 13,819,048
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Translation of financial staemenis
Originally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.AE)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Provision for impairment losses:
The Provision for impairment losses analysis for loans and facilities to customers' as follows:

Retail Corporate Total

30 JUNE 2016 L.E (000) 1..E (000) L.E (000)
Beginning balance 35,932 1,085,220 1,121,152
Impairment charged during the period 165 150,304 150,469
Proceeds from loans previously written off - 2,252 2,252
Foreign currency transtation differences - 10,962 10,962
Transferred to operational risk provisions (486) - (486)

35,611 1,248,738 1,284,349
Used during the period , (078) (325,874) {326,852)
Ending balance 34,633 922,864 957,497

-The amount of bad debts which was written off reached L.E 326,852 thousand for the
period ended 30 JUNE 2016.

31 December 2015 L.E (000) L.E (000) L.E (000)
Beginning balance 31,674 887,668 919,342
Impairment charged during the year - 252,827 252,827
Proceeds from loans previously written off - 1,625 1,625
Foreign currency translation differences - 5,043 5,043
Transferred from corporate to retail © 8,750 {8,750) ' -
Transferred (o contingent fiabilities provisions ' - {20,761) (20,761)
40,424 1,117,052 1,158,076
Used during the year {4,492) {(32,432) (36,924)
Ending balance 35,932 1,085,220 1,121,152

18. Derivafives financial insfronments

Derivatives o ‘
The bank uses the following derivatives for hedging and non-hedging purposes:

The forward currency contracts represent commitments to buy foreign and local currencies,
including unexecuted spot transactions. Foreign currency and /or interest rates future contracls
are contractual obligations to receive or pay net amount based on the change in foreign exchange
or interest rates, and/or buy or sell foreign currency or financial instrument in a future date ata
contractual determined price in an active financial market.

The Bank’s credit risk is considered minimal, forward interest rate contracts represent future
interest rate contracts negotiated on case by case, these contracts require settlements in a futwre
date of the difference between agréed interest rates and prevailing market interest rate based on
agreed contractual amount (nominal value}.

Currency and/or interest rate swaps represent commitments to exchange cash flows. As a result
of these contracts, currencies or interest rates {e.g., fixed rate verses variable rate) or both
(interest rate and currency swaps) are exchanged. Contractual amounts are not actually
exchanged except for some currency swaps.
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Translalion of financial statzments
Criginally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (§.AE)

Noles to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

- Credit risks are represented in the confingent cost Lo change swap contracts in case the countet
partics failed to perform their commitments. This risk is continuously monitored through
comparisons of fair value and contractual amount, and to monitor the existing credit risk, the
Bank evaluates counter parties using the same methods used in lending activities.

Foreign currency options and/or interest rates options represent contraciual agreements whereby
the seller (issuer) gives the buyer (holders} a right not an obligations , to buy(call option) or to
sell (put option) on a certain day or within a certain period , a certain amount of foreign currency
or financial instrument at a predetermined price . The seller receives commissions in
compensation for his acceptance of the foreign currency risk of interest rate risk. Options
contracis are either traded in the market or negotiated between the bank and one of its clients.
The bank is exposed to credit risk for purchased options contracts only and to extent of is
carrying values which represent its fair value.

- The contractual value of some financial instrmments are considered a base o compare with the
recognized financial instruments on the balance sheet, however it does not necessarily provide
an indicator for future cash flow or the fair value of the instruments, thus, those amounts
doesn’t reflect the credit risk or interest rate risk.

- Derivatives are considered in the favor of the bank (assets) or not in its favor (liabilities) as a
result of changes in foreign exchange rates or ierest rates related to these derivatives.
‘Contractual /estimated amounts of financial derivatives can fluctuate from time to time, as well
as, the range through which derivatives are considered in the favor of the bank (assets) or not in
its favor (liabilities) and the total fair value of the financial assets and liabilities {rom derivative.
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Transhition of financial stateraents
Originally issued in Arablic

Notes to the Financial Stalements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Derivatives held for trading:

{(Amounts in L.E 000)

30 JUNE 20106 31 December 2015
Contractual Contractual
notional notional
amount Assets Liabilitics amoung Assefs Liabilitics
Derivatives held for trading
Interesl rate swaps 87,800 3,024 77,301 1,059
Total derivatives 87,800 3,624 77,301 - 1,059
19, Financial investments
30 JUNE 2016 3} December 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)
Available for sale investments
Debt Instruments — Fair value:
Quoted 6,666,624 " 6,549,001
Debt instruments —unqueoted
Ishragq Fund 11,575 16,611
Namaa Fund 1,778 1,815
Equity Instruments — Tair value:
Unguoted 39,878 40,095
Less: hnpairment loss (8,158) {8,158)
Total available for sale investments (1) 6,711,697 6,599,364
Held to maturity investments
Debt instruments — Amortized Cost:
Unquoted:
National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt Fund 6,750 6,750
Ishraq Fund 5,000 5,000
Alhayah Fund 5,000 5,000
Namaa Fund 5,000 5,000
Total Held o maturify investments (2) 21,750 21,750
Total fingmeial investments (1+2) 6,733,447 6,621,114
Current Balances 6,679,977 6,507,428
Non-Current Balances 53,470 53,686
6,733,447 6,621,114
Fixed interest debt instruments 6,634,581 6,510,061
Variable interest debt instruments 98,866 111,053
6,733,447 6,621,114
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Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Balance as of 1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals (Sale / Redcmption}

Monetary assets revaluation differences
Gainfloss from change in FMV for available
for sale investments (Note 28)

Reverse Of change in FMV for available
for sale investments

Amortized cost during the period

Deduct provisions for credit losses

Balance as of 30 JUNE 2016

Balance as of | January 2015

Additions

Disposals {Sale / Redemption)

Monetary assets revaluation differences
Gain/loss from change in FMV for available
for sale investments (Nole 28)

Reverse Of change in TNV for available
for sale investments (Note 28)

Amortized cost during the year

Deduct provisions for credit losses

Balance as of 31 December 2015

20, Investments in associates

The banlk contribution was as

International company for postal
Al-Watany capital assets manage

Available for sale

Held to maturity

. \ Tatal
investments investments
L. (000) L.E (000) L.I {G0D)

6,599,364 21,750 6,621,114

973,931 - 673,931

(800,986) (800,986)

10,262 “ 10,262

(63,343) i (63,343)

(5,086) i (5,086)

(2,445) - (2,445)

6,711,697 21,750 6,733,447

4 886,650 21,750 4,908,400

3,795,310 - 3,795,310
(2,088,761) - (2,088,761)

6,185 - 6,195

20,842 ) 20,842

(12,846) ) (12,846)

(6,582) - (6,582)

(1,444) - (1,444)

6,599,364 21,750 6,621,114

follow:
30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
Amount Holding Amount Hokdmg
Percentage Percentage
L.E (000) Y% L.E (000} %%
services 5,477 20.00 3,469 20.00
nient 31,233 49,99 31,316 49,99
36,710 34,785

The main financial data and the share of the bank in the Associates are from the financia! statements as of 31

March 2016 are as follows -

Description

Nature Region
Internationat  company
for postal services Associate Eaypt
Al Watany
Capital assets
management Associate Egypt

All investments in associates are unguoted.

L.E (000)
Total
Liabilities Net
Assets of without Revenues of Income of  Share of
company Equity company company the bank Share %
37,125 10,019 27,568 8,799 5,477 20,00
03,234 153 1,147 F10 31,233 49,99
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21. Other assets

Accrued revenues

Advances to purchase fixed assets

Assets transferred to the bank (after deducting
the impairment)

Cotllective insurance policy

Prepaid expenses

Insurance & petty cash

Prepaid interest expense

Other

30 JUNE 2010 31 December 2015
L. (000) L.E (000)

305,578 276,227

36,093 39,843

70,922 70,170

154,465 154,697

23,497 13,206

13,102 10,302

22,493 20,273

93,727 41,603
‘719,877 626,321
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.)Y)

‘Iranslation of financial slatements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

23.

24,

Pue to banks

A- Local Banks
Deposits

BB- Foreign Banks
Current Accounts
Deposits

Non-interest bearing balances
Interest bearing balances

Current balances

Customers’ deposits

Demand deposits
Time and call deposits
Certificates of deposits
Saving deposits

Other deposits

Total

Financial Institutions deposits

Individual and Corporate deposits

Mon-inierest bearing balances
Interest bearing balances

Current balances
Non-current balances

30 JUNE 2016

31 December 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)
46,213 389,921
46,213 389,921
69,837 42,198

3,774,764 3,160,670
3,844,601 3,202,868
3,890,814 3,592,789
69,787 42,067
3,821,027 3,550,722
3,890,814 "3,592,789
3,890,814 3,592,789
3,890,814 3,592,789
30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)
11,766,582 10,268,039
9,249,346 10,305,085
6,920,984 6,427,984
3,158,780 2,968 503
692,404 424,678
31,788,096 30,394,299
18,813,336 18,672,852
12,974,760 11,721,447
31,788,096 o 30,394,289
692,403 424 677
31,095,693 26,969 822
31,788,096 30,394,299
24,802,212 24,313,378
6,985,884 6,080,921
31,788,096 30,394,299
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Translation of financial statements
Originally issued in Arsbic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
25, Other Loans

European bank for reconstruction and development
loan

IFC loan

Sanad For financing of small and micro enterprises

toan
Subordinated Joan (National Bank of Kuwait- Kuwait)*

30 JUNE 2016 3} December 2015

L.T (000) L.E (000)
439,000 193,252
439,000

87,800
482,900 425,156
1,448,700 618,408

* According to the note (31-B “Transactions with related parties™) Other Loans represent

loans from the National Bank of Kuwait,

26. Other liabilities

Accrued interest
Creditors

Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue

Other credit balances

27. Other Provisions

Potential  Contingent
claims liab#lities

Provision retivement  Operation

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) L.E (000)
167,222 164,922
65,262 53,207
37,796 22,444
49,983 25,540
62,482 29,170
382,745 295,283
L.E (000)
Legal Early Bank

. .y e \ Total

Provision provision Provisien Risk
As of 30 JUNE 2016 Provision
g’:li;‘:f‘ at the beginning of the 72,433 70,801 3,669 - 4,618 151,521
Charged to the income statement - - - - - -
Transferred from Loans provision - - - - 486 486
F_oretgn currency valuation . 676 134 3 324 1,134
dilference
Used during the period - (7,518) (544 - (853) (8,615)
Balance at the end of the period 12,433 63,959 3,259 - 4,875 144,526

L.E (000}
Potential  Contingent Legal Barly Bank
claims Habilities Provision  retirement Operation Total

Provision provision Provision Risk ota
As of at 31 December 2015 Provision
Batance at the beginning of the year 49,243 49,820 1,853 11,224 4,435 116,575
Charged fo the income statement 23,190 - 3,885 43,130 - 70,205
Foreign cnrency valuation
difference ) 220 75 ) 183 478
Used during the year . - (2,1449) (54,354) - {56,498)
Transferred from Loans provision - 20,761 - - - 20,761
Balance at the end of the year 72,433 70,801 3,669 - 4,618 151,521
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National Bank of Kuwnwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Translativn of financial slatements
Originally jssued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

28, Peferred tax

Deferred income taxes calculated entirely on the temporary differences in accordance with
liabilities method using the enacted tax rate for the current financial year.

Defered tax assets and liabilities can be offset where legally enforceable right to offset
current fax assets against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax asscts and liabilities are in

the same tax jurisdiction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities balances

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax tiabilities

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015 30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) L.E {000) L.E (000) L..E (000)
Fixed assets deprecation - - (13,666) {13,580)
Provisions (other than loans 9.486 9 486 i 3
provisiomn) ’ ’
Total tax assets (Habilifies) 9,486 9,486 (13,666) {13,580}
Net tax assets (liabilities) (4,180) {4,094} - -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities movement :

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilitics

30 JUNE 2016 31 Pecember 20135 30 JUNT 2016 31 December 2015
L.I (060) L.E (000) L.E (000) L.E {600)
Balance at the beginning of the 9,486 9,689 (13,580) (17,314)
Period /year
Addilions - - - -
Disposal - (203) {86) 3,734
Balance at the end of the period /year 9,486 9,486 (13,6606) {(13,530)

29, Stockholders’ Equity
{a) Authorized Capital
The authorized capital amounts to one biltion Egyptfan pounds.

(b) Issued and Paid up Capital

The issued and paid capital is one billion Egyptian pound divided on 100 million shares

the par value per share is L.E 10

(¢) Reserves

— According to the Bank’s articles of association, 5% of the net profits of the year
are. transferred to the legal reserve until this reserve reaches 100% of the issued

capilal,

— According to Central Bank instructions, the bank cannot wse the balance of the

special reserve without the approval of the Central Bank.
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.E)

Translation of Hirancial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

Legal reserve

General reserve

Specific reserve

Capital rescrve

General banking risk reserve

Fair value reserve — available for sale investments
Total Reserves

Fair value reserve — available for sale

investinents

Balance at the beginning of the period / year

Net Gains (losses) from change in fair value

Foreign currencies exchange differences of available for
sale investments

Reversal of Available for sale financial investments fair
value reserve transferred to the income statement during
the period / year due to sale

(d) Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings’ movement
Balance at the beginning of the period

Transferred from profits of the period
Dividends

Transferred to reserves and retained eamnings
Balance at the end of the period

30, Cash and cash equivalen(s

30 JUNE 2016

31 December 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)
168,496 139,736
356,773 256,773

9,205 0,205

32,270 31,889

31,351 31,351

(56,054) 12,773

542,041 481,727

12,773 4,573

(63,343) 20,842

(398) 204

(5,086) (12,840)

(56,054) 12,773
30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)

1,020,718 553,153
407,436 575,585
(58,011) (36,631}
(129,141) {71,389}
1,241,002 1,020,718

For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flow, the cash and cash equivalent includes
the following balances of maturity dates within less than three months from the date of

acquisition:

Cash and due from Central Bank of Egypt
Due from banks
Treasury bills

Due from central bank (within the mandatory reserve percentage)
Treasury bills with maturities of more than three months

Cash and cash cquivalents

30 JUNE 2016 31 Decetnber 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)
2,487,454 2,974,811
3,467,401 6,593,910

10,480,652 6,612,335
(2,074,408) (2,662,751
(10,336,496) (6,530,822)
4,024,603 6,087,483
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypi (S.A.E)

Transtation of financial statements
Criginally issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

31. Related party transactions

The Bank is a subsidiary of parent National bank of Kuwait, which owns 94.93% of ordinary
shares. The remaining percentage (5.07%) is owned by other shareholders. Apparently
exceeding 2000 shareholders and no one of them acquire 5% or more

Number of banking transactions with related parties has been conducted in the normal course
of the business including loans deposits and foreign currency swaps. There is no related party
{ransaction with the parent company other than the payment of dividends on ordinary shares.

Related parties transactions and balances af the end of the financial year are as follows:

A-

Balances of related partics

Due o customers
Current accounis
Deposils

Due from customers
Bank overdrafl
Other debit balances

Balance at the end of the period / year

Due from banks
Due to banks

Subordinated loan from National Bank of Kuwait

Nominal amount at the end of the period / year

Associates Companies

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
" 1.E (000} L.E (000)

4,453 2,791

4,000 -

8,453 2,791

673 26,010

224 81

897 26,091

National Bank of Kuwait

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E {000) L.E (0600)
35,9406 41,542
1,888,731 1,821,571t
30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) I..E {000}
482,900 425,156
482,900 425,156

— The Bank obtained a subordinated loan amounting to U.S. Dollars 55 million , equivalent to
L.E 482,900 K using exchange rate as of 30 JUNE 2016 8.78 L.E per USD from National
Bank of Kuwait, for a period of 10 years starting from 31 May 2011 until 31 May 2021, the
Joan agreement include the acceptance and commitment of National Bank of Kuwait to
receive a subordinated priority following ihe depositors and creditors in case of liquidation,
and the loan is at the disposal of National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt who is committed to pay
the full amount of the loan at maturity date with intevest rate 1.7% annually .




Translation of linancial slatements
Originally {ssued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.F)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

C- Transactions with Al Watany Capital Assets Managements Company

Transactions with Al Watany Capital Assets Managements Company as follows:

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015
L.E (000) L.E {000}

Mutual funds managements fess 1,2 18 3,041
Interest expenses 12 172

D- The total amount of salaries and wages paid for the top 20 banks employees is L.E 11,669 K
with a monthly average salary L.E 1,945 K for the period ended 30 JUNE 2616.

32. Commitment and contingent liabilifies

A~ Legal claims
There are lawsuits filed against the Bank as at 30 JUNE 2016 amounted to 15,315
K, provisions were charged for some of these lawsuits, while no provisions were
charged for the others since it is not expected (hat these lawsuits will result in loss.

B- Capital Commitment
The Bank’s total capital commitments related to building and core systems purchase
amounted {o LE 11,487 K as at 30 JUNE 2016, compared to L.E 16,949 K as at 31
December 2015 related to building and core system purchase. The management is
confident that net revenues will be generated and provides the sufficient finance to pay
these commitments.

C- Commitments for loans, guaraniees and facilities
Bank Commitments for loans guarantees and facilities are represented as follows:

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015

L.E (000) L.E (000)
Acceptances Securities 564,660 376,012
Letters of guarantee 2,423,420 2,249,487
Letters of credit (import and export} 801,013 616,889
Guarantees upon other banks’ request or by their
warrantics 1,380,424 1,039,673
Total 5,169,517 4,281,961
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Transtation of financial slatenizn's
Originally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwall - Egypt (S.A.E)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

D- Commitments for operating lease contracts

The total minimum lease payments for irrevocable operating leases are as follows:

30 JUNE 2016 31 December 2015

L.E (000) L.IE (000)
Less than ene year 6,001 5,498
More than one vear and less than five years 9,398 5,687
More than five years 3,286 -
18,775 11,185

33. Finance Lease Liabilities

The bank entered into sale agreement with International Company for Leasing
(INCOLEASE), according to the agreements the bank sold real estate (lands) which had
been transferred to the bank, in addition to some branches and the intangible assels and
leased it back. The bank granted loans to the leasing company with the same sale amounts.

as follows:

Deseription Selling Amount Finance Lease installment Period
Amount Currency Amount  Currency
Shoubra Branch 2,515 Egyptian Pounds 39 Egyptian Pounds Manthly
Smouha Branch 2,970 Egyptian Pounds 46 Egyptian Pounds Monthly
Nozha Branch 4,208 FEgyptian Pounds .51 Egyptian Pounds Monthly
El Hegaz Branch 5,076  Egyptian Pounds 61 Egyptian Pounds Monthly
El Nasr Branch 8,262 Egyptian Pounds 3t Egyptian Pounds Monthly
Mesadak Branch 11,573 Egypiian Pounds 114 Egyptian Pounds Monthly
1T Improvement — 3 16,380 Egyptian Pounds 355 Egyptian Pounds Monthly
IT Tmprovement — 4 6,766 Egyptian Pounds 152 Egyptian Pounds Monthly
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Transtation of financial statements
Criginally issued in Arabic

Natjonal Bank of Kuwait - Epypt (8.A.E)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
34. Distribution of Assets , Liabilities , Condingent Liabilities and Commitments:

Local Currency Foretgn Currency
L.E (000) L.E (000}
First: Assets:
A- Due from banks 2,597,131 870,270
2,697,131 - 870,270
B- Loans to Customer and Banls
Agriculture Sector 624,001 7,848
Industrial Sector 4,436,638 5,652,710
Commercial Sector 1,848,097 364,378
Secrvices Sector 1,444,772 661,789
Family Sector 2,078,565 69,005
Other Sectors 950 19,519
10,433,023 6,775,249
Loans Provision {895,257) (62,240)
Interest in suspense (9,228) (726)
Net Loans 0,628,638 6,712,283
Sccond: Liabilities:
A~ Due to banks 2,524 3,888,290
2,524 3,888,290
B- Customer Deposits
Agriculture Sector 111,514 43,205
Industrial Sector 6,261,337 1,615,155
Commercial Sector 1,437,527 477,151
Services Sector 1,423,847 606,585
Family Sector 12,234,935 2,112,941
Other Sectors 4,198,649 1,265,250
25,667,809 6,120,287
C-  Coutingent Liabilities ' '
Letter of guarantees 2,077,374 346,046
Acceptance papers for credit facililies 85,383 1,295,041
Letter of credit (Import & Export}) 15,679 785,334
Accepted bills for suppliers facilities - 564,660
2,178,436 2,991,081
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National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (5.AE)

Transtation of financial statements
Origiially issued in Arabic

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

35, Geographical distribution of loans balances ¢

Cairo

6th of October
Alexandria
Gharbya
Damitta
Shrquia
Dakahlia
Giza
Kalubaia
Asuit

Sohaj

Red sea
South Sinai

Less

Loans Provision of impairment losses
Tnterest in suspense

Net Loans

36. Geographical distribution of Deposits

Cairo

6ih of October
Alexandria
Bheira
Gharbya
Damitta
Sharquia
Dakahlia
Kalubaia
Giza

Asuil
Sohaj

Red sea
South Sinai

Local Currency

Foreign Currency

L.E (000) L.E (000)
4,231,721 1,093,139
898,384 82,854
972,381 304,436
67,654 496
17,598 -
200,864 163,506
403,512 203,080
3,399,726 4,649,444
88,619 283,364
37,882 -
71,356 111
37,528 -
617 -
10,427,842 - 6,780,420
{895,257) (62,240)
(9,228) (726)
9,623,357 6,717,464
Loeal Currency Foreign Currency
L.E (000) L.E (000)
12,864,023 3,715,889
1,092,315 435,403
2,396,250 616,742
- 1,321,521
221177 .
84,197 9,275
173,840 8,305
383,477 -
163,363 -
7,800,794 -
168,882 -
251,977 -
53,859 9,747
10,407 10,653
25,660,561 6,127,535
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‘Iranslation of financial statements
Crigirally issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (S.A.LE)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

37, Mutual Funds

(A) National Bauk of Kuwail - Egypt Mutual Fund (with the periedie return and capital
growth):

The mutual fund is a banking activity authorized for the bank by virtue of Capital

Market Law No. 95/ 1992 and ils Executive Reguhtton The fund is managed by

Hermes for Asset Management. :
The certificates of the fund has reached 1,350,000 certificates amounted to L.E

135,000 K of which 67,500 certificates (Held) were allocated to the bank to

undertake the fund’s activity with a nominal value of L.E 6,750 K.

The redeemable value of the certificale as of 30 JUNE 2016 amounted to L.E
179.12901 and the ouisianding of the fund certificates at that date reached 225,293
certificates while the net asscts value of the mutual fund was L.E 40,356K as of 30
JUNE 2016.

According to the Fund’s management contract and Fund’s prospectus, Nafional
Bank of Kuwait - Egypt obtains 0.0035 as fee and commission for supervision on
the fund and other managerial services rendered by the bank.

Total commissions amounted to L.E 79 K for the period ended 30 JUNE 2016
included in fees and commissions income caption in the Income Statement.

(B) National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt Mutual Fund (with the cumulative daily return
“Ishragq”h

The mutual fund is a banking activity authorized for the bank by virtue of Capital
Market Law No. 95/ 1992 and its Executive Regulation. The fund is managed by Al
Watany Capital for Asset Management. The certificates of the fund has reached
14,898,379 certificates amounted to TE 148,984 K of which 500,000 certificates
(Held) were allocated to the bank to undertake the fond’s activity with a nominal
value of L.E 5,000 K

The Bank purchased a number of 665,600 certificates (A'S) of total amount of LE
9,775 K and with a redeemable value amounted to L.E 11,575 K as of 30 JUNE
2016.

The redeemable value of the certificate as of 30 JUNE 2016 amounted to L.E
17.39024 and the outstanding of the fund certificales at that date reached 37,286,822
certificates while the net assets value of the mutual fund was L.E 648,427 K as of 30
JUNE 2016,

According to the Fund’s management confract and Fund’s prospectus, National
Bank of Kuwait - Egypt obtains 0.0045 as fees and commissions for supervising the
fund and other managerial services rendered by the Bank., Total commissions
amownled to L.E 1,944 K for the period ended 30 JUNE 2016 included in fees and
commissions income caplion in the Income Statement.
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Translition of financiol staternents
Originatly issued in Arabic

National Bank of Kuwait - Egypt (8.A.E)

Noles to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 JUNE 2016

(C) Al Hayat Mutual Fund (with the eunulative daily retuwrn and the periodic distribution -
works according to Iskamic Shariah):

The mutual fund is a banking activity authorized for the bank by virtue of Capital
Market Law No. 95/ 1992 and its Executive Regulation. The fund is managed by Al
Watany Capital for Asset Management. The certificates of the fund has reached
5,000,000 certificates amounted to L.E 50,000 K of which 500,000 certificates
{Held) were allocated to the Bank to undertake the fund’s activity with a nominal
vahie of L.E 5,000 K

The redeemable value of the certificate as of 30 JUNE 2016 amounted to LL.E
11.28456 and the outstanding of the fund certificates at that date reached 1,076,579
certificates while the net assets value of the mutnal fund was L.E 12,149 K as of 30
JUNE: 2016.

According to the Fund’s management contract and Fund’s prospectus, National
Bank of Kuwait - Egypt obtains 0.006 as fees and commissions for supervising the
fund and other managerial services rendered by the Bank. Tolal commissions
amounted to L.X 37 K for the period ended 30 JUNE 2016 included in fees and =
commissions income caption in the Income Statement,

(D} Namaa Mutual Fund (with the cumulative daily return and the periodie distribution):

The mutual fund is a banking activity authorized for the bank by virtue of Capital
Market Law No. 95/ 1992 and its Executive Regulation. The fund is managed by Al
Watany Capifal for Asset Management, The certificates of the fund has reached -
6,081,969 certificates amounted to L.E 60,820 K of which 500,000 certificates
(Held) were allocated to the Bank to undertake the fund’s activity with a nominal
value of L.E 5,000 K

The bank purchased a mumber of 185,334 certificates (ATS) of total amount of LE
2,050 K and with a redeemable value amounted to L.E 1,778 K as of 30 JUNE 2016,

The redeemable value of the certificale as of 30 JUNE 2016 amounnted to LE
9.59126 and the outstanding of the fund certificates at that date reached 715,386
cerlificates while the net assets value of the mutual fund was L.E 6,861 K as of 30
JUNE 2016.

According to the Fund’s management contract and Fund’s prospectus, National
Bank of Kuwail - Egypt obtains 0.006 as fees and commissions for supervising the
fund and other managerial services rendered by the Bank. Tofal commissions
amounted to L.E 21 K for the period ended 30 JUNE 2016 included in fees and
commissions income caption in the Income Statement.

38. comparative figures
The comparative figures for year 2015 had been reclassified to comply with the
classification of financial statement for the current period.
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